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City of Tacoma 
Department of Information Technology 

Temporary Staffing Master Services 
RFP Specification No. IT19-0441F 

 
QUESTIONS and ANSWERS 

 
All interested parties had the opportunity to submit questions in writing by email to Alex Clark by 
December 11, 2019. The answers to the questions received are provided below and posted to 
the City’s website at www.TacomaPurchasing.org:  Navigate to Current Contracting 
Opportunities / Services, and then click Questions and Answers for this Specification. This 
information IS NOT considered an addendum. Respondents should consider this information 
when submitting their proposals. 
 
Question 1: Can you please provide the previous contact, incumbent pricing, existing 

vendor information, pay rates, etc?  
 

Answer 1: Although the City has contracts for staff augmentation it uses for a variety of 
roles, this type of all encompassing master services contract is a new project and has no 
current/existing vendors. This is a new contract. All questions relating to incumbent 
information, existing pricing, etc. is most accurately answered by "N/A".  

 
Question 2: Please suggest if City has a template for vendors to provide pricing 

for the various categories, roles and seniority level of the consultants.  
 
Answer 2: Vendors can prepare their own pricing template. 
 

Question 3: Can you please provide the incumbent vendors previous bid 
documents? 

 
Answer 3: This is a new master services contract.  

 
Question 4: What is the annual spend for this contract?  

 
Answer 4: There is no predetermined annual spend.  It will be as needed and could be up to 

$7M over the life of the contract 
 

Question 5: If it is an ongoing project, Is the existing contract with one or 
multiple Vendors?   

 
Answer 5: This is not for an established project. Many smaller tasks (projects) will utilize 

vendor resources established by this contract.  
 

Question 6: Is budget allocated for this project?  
 

Answer 6: Yes 
 

Question 7: Please provide a copy of the proposal of all current vendors 
providing staff augmentation, including rate/cost sheets? 

 
Answer 7: Although the City has contracts for staff augmentation, this type of Master 

Services contract has no current vendors. 
 

http://www.tacomapurchasing.org/


Form No. SPEC-230A  Revised: 06/30/2017 
Page 2 of 7 

Question 8: How many vendors do you intend to award?  
 

Answer 8: Minimum of 3. 
 

Question 9: What is the expected/tentative award date for this project? 
 

Answer 9: Jan 2020. 
 

Question 10: If we selected as awardee, how we can receive Task Assignments 
(Email / portal / Website)? 

 
Answer 10: Email. 

 
Question 11: What is the no. of expected Task Assignment per year?  

 
Answer 11: Not known at this time  

 
Question 12: As per document stated that “Interviews/presentations, conducted 

week of January 6, 2020”. Please let us know that mode of interview (In person / 
Skype / Phone).  

 
Answer 12: In person is preferred but online may be possible.  January 6th is an 

estimate and not set. 
 

Question 13: We are not city of Tacoma SBE firm. Still are we eligible to respond 
on this RFP?  

 
Answer 13: Yes. 

 
Question 14: Is it mandatory to partner with city of Tacoma SBE firm?  

 
Answer 14: No. 

 
Question 15: Could you please clarify on state Contractor’s license number?  

 
Answer 15: See RCW 18.27 on the State's website. 
 

Question 16: For example, if we don't have state Contractor’s license number, are 
we eligible to respond on this? (We have state business license number (UBI) & 
Bellevue city license number.) 

 
Answer 16: You are eligible to respond, but a suppliers must have all necessary licenses and 

permits (including a Washington State Business License, if applicable) before a 
contract can be is executed. 

 
Question 17: Could you please provide Hourly Rates format. Or do you want us to 

provide? Please find the below sample format. Please do confirm. 
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Category 1: Workforce Productivity Hourly Rate 
Service Desk Support   
PC Support   
Systems Administrators   
Operators   
Developers   
Business Analysts   
Category 2: Business Automation   
Business Analysts   
Configurators   
Developers   
System Integrators   
System Architects   
System Administrators   
Test Managers   
Quality Assurance Managers   
Release Managers   

 
 
Answer 17: This format is fine. 
 

Question 18: Who are the current incumbents or current pricing on this contract?  
 
Answer 18: NA 
 

Question 19: What is the budget allocated to this contract? 
 

Answer 19: Up to $7 million over the life of the contract. 
 

Question 20: How many temps are currently working on the existing contract and 
will they all be transitioned to the new vendors?  

 
Answer 20: Although the City has contracts for staff augmentation, this type of Master 

Services contract has no current vendors. 
 

Question 21: Is it single award or multiple award contract? 
 
Answer 21: See answer #8. 
 

Question 22: Please suggest if City has a template for vendors to provide pricing 
for the various categories, roles and seniority level of the consultants. Kindly let 
me know if each vendor has to prepare their own pricing template. 

 
Answer 22: The City does not have a pricing template, each vendor should prepare their own 

pricing template. 
 

Question 23: Does the City have a preferred Price Proposal Form/format or would 
you like us to incorporate hourly rate columns into the PRIME CONTRACTOR'S 
PRE-WORK FORM?  
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Answer 23: The City does not have a preferred Price Proposal Form or Format. Each vendor 

should prepare their own pricing template. The Prime Contractor's Pre-Work 
Form is not for pricing. See the instructions for completing the Prime Contractor's 
Pre-Work Form directly following the Prime Contractor's Pre-Work Form included 
in the RFP.  

 
Question 24: Would the City consider extending the Submittal Deadline to 

Thursday, December 19, 2019 to address the Q&A?  
 
Answer 24: This was addressed in addendum #1. We extended the deadline a week to 

Tuesday, December 24, 2019. 
 

Question 25: Do we need to provide rates in ranges as there are several roles 
involve in one labor category and each role varies from Junior to Senior Level? 
Please suggest it.  

 
Answer 25: Yes you can provide ranges. If a range is submitted, we will take the 

median value of that range for evaluation purposes. For example: If the range you 
provide is $80-$100 per hour for a specific category, we will evaluate your submittal at 
$90 for that category. 

 
Question 26: Prime Contractor’s pre-work form:  You list the following job 

categories - officers / managers, Supervisors, Project Managers, Office / Clerical. 
Are you referring to and are we responding based on existing and current 
employed workforce? What about positions on that form that would not apply to 
this project (Superintendent)?  

 
Answer 26: Please see the instruction page for completing the Prime Contractor's Pre-Work 

Form. If you need further assistance please call the SBE office at the number 
listed.  

 
Question 27: Section I - 3.a requests that we provide a description of the job roles 

that are proposed to service the account.   We assume you are looking for 
descriptions and roles of the MW Partners account team that will be specifically 
designated and assigned to service the City of Tacoma.   Please confirm our 
assumption is correct.  If not, let us know how we should respond. 

 
Answer 27: That is correct. 

 
Question 28: Are we able to provide summaries/LinkedIn Profiles of the key MW 

Partners personnel that will be servicing the City of Tacoma, or do you need 
current resumes?  

 
Answer 28: Summaries/resumes are acceptable. No profile links please. 

 
Question 29: Rates – are we able to provide rate ranges for the different 

categories/roles or do you require one not to exceed rate for the category/role?  
We are not sure how you want to receive the pricing / rate matrix, so appreciate 
your clarification. 

 
Answer 29: Rate ranges broken out by role.  You do not need to respond to every role 

if it is not a role that your company resources. 
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Question 30: Rates – should we provide a rate table embedded in our response or 
should we include as an appendix?  Please see attached example of Rate table / 
matrix used to respond to prior City of Tacoma RFP.   Please let us know if we can 
use this same matrix again, or if you prefer us to submit pricing in a different 
format.  if different format, please explain the format.    

 
Answer 30: There is no price proposal form or preferred format for submitting pricing. 

Vendors are free to submit the information in anyway they feel is best.  
 

Question 31: Rates –  although we always try to source local talent or resources 
that will relocate to the Tacoma area, this is not always possible   May we provide 
two (2) different rate categories – one (1) for local or relocation resources and 
another category for resources that must travel (rates will be all inclusive and 
include all expenses). 

 
Answer 31:  Yes that is acceptable as long as it is inclusive of travel and expenses. 

 
Question 32: Is the $7M figured over a 5 year or 2 year period and divided among 

the successful bidders? 
 

Answer 32: 7 Million will be the life of the contract.  That can be in the first two years 
or up to 5 years depending on when we spend it and if we decide to extend.   

 
Question 33: Regarding #7 Small Business Enterprise, in sections a. – d. we are 

asked to choose an item.  Can you tell us what the items are? 
 
Answer 33: This was addressed in Addendum #1, adding fields to pick Yes/No.  
 

Question 34: What is the average length of a temporary assignment related to this 
contract?  

 
Answer 34: We anticipate these to vary from a couple weeks to a year or more. 

 
Question 35: Please provide the specific roles of individuals who will be 

reviewing and scoring this RFP. We would like to have an idea of the audience 
 
Answer 35: The participants of the SAC are confirmed after all submittals have been 

received. 
 

Question 36: Is there a maximum number of firms for each category that the City 
of Tacoma is planning to award?  

 
Answer 36: No. 

 
Question 37: Is there a page limit and/or any formatting guidelines for responding 

to this RFP?  
 

Answer 37: No. You may want to separate Junior, Senior and other level resources 
and their rates. 

 
Question 38: Does the RFP have to be submitted my mail, carrier or in-person or 

is there a more sustainable electronic submission option? If a paper copy must be 
submitted, how many copies must be submitted, and do you also need an 
electronic copy on a USB flash drive or something similar?   
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Answer 38: Please refer to the submittal checklist located directly after the table of contents 

in the RFP. 
 

Question 39: Under Qualifications/Experience of Firm, it discusses the term 
“consulting services” and our firm only provides staff augmentation services, can 
you please clarify “consulting services”? It also mentions “consultants”, is that 
the same as temporary and/or contract workers? If not, can you please define 
“consultants”?  

 
Answer 39: Consultants in this case is a generic term for any contract worker. 

 
Question 40: Under Qualifications/Experience of Key Personnel, it asks for more 

information on who will be servicing the City of Tacoma including lead, senior or 
base level consultants. We would be assigning an account executive as a point of 
contact from our firm as well as a recruitment team to support the Task 
Assignments given to us by the City of Tacoma, but our temporary employees that 
would we place on each assignment would be decided at the time of task 
assignment and not known beforehand. Would it be acceptable that we only 
describe our internal/corporate key personnel assigned to support the City of 
Tacoma and not anyone who would be working on a temporary assignment for the 
City?  

 
Answer 40: Generally, we see a resume from the contract worker on the task 

assignments request. In the RFP, providing a sample of resumes from your lead, senior, 
and base level contract workers would be good. 

 
Question 41: Under Fees and Charges/Method of Billing/Hourly Rates, can we 

quote a markup % over the actual employee pay rate for each job role/category 
instead of hourly rates? If the answer is no, and specific hourly rates are required, 
how is that rate adjusted during the annual adjustment period since market pay 
rates for candidates increase over time in addition to increased 
overhead/business costs? If the answer is no, and we do need to provide specific 
hourly rates for each role and not a markup %, can you please provide the job 
descriptions for each role? (job descriptions are not requested at this time if 
markup % can be quoted)   

 
Answer 41: Please provide an all-inclusive rate per hour. We will not pay per diem or 

food reimbursements.  
 

Question 42: Would you like us to quote a conversion fee and/or direct hire option 
as well?  

 
Answer 42: An hourly rate for each resource level would suffice. 

 
Question 43: Under Small Business Enterprise, it says “Choose an item”, is there 

an alternative answer to be written besides yes or no to answer the questions in 
this section? 

 
Answer 43: This is corrected with proper "yes/no" fields in addendum #1. 
 

Question 44: Under Credit Card Acceptance, it asks to identify the level of our 
reporting capabilities. Can you please clarify how our firm would know if we are 
level I, II or III? 
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Answer 44: If no one in your organization, such as a Controller or CFO, is aware of your firms 

level of reporting capabilities, you will have to contact your merchant services 
representative (whoever helped you setup the ability to accept credit cards) for 
that information. 

 
Question 45: We are a large International organization with strong local presence.  

We have many services offerings and consultants that could support your 8 
categories.  We have a local account team that will manage the account but what 
is the best way to address this for PM, Lead, Sr. or Base level consultants when 
we could have multiple for each of the skillsets in each category? 

 
Answer 45: Provide some sample resumes from your local team along with hourly 

rates for each resource level.   
 

Question 46: We have capability to provide services T&M and fixed fee.  How 
should we include our capability to do fixed fee work without any specific 
scopes? 

 
Answer 46: Request are generally evaluated on hourly rates. Note that the City 

prefers to not pay travel, per diem or food reimbursements. Please use an all-inclusive 
rate for resources and note that the rate is all inclusive so it can be evaluated 
appropriately. 

 
Question 47: Will City of Tacoma accept redlines to its MSA?  

 
Answer 47: We will review redlines and may make edits where acceptable. 

 
Question 48: What is the scoring matrix for SBE?  Example if we are not a SBE 

but are partnering with one for this RFP, how many points would that achieve of 
the 5 available? 

 
Answer 48: This is clarified in Addendum #1. Firms will get the full 5 points if they meet the 

criteria. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


